N WOLLITY—-

ROBERT C. BUNDY 1% (
United States :

Special Assistant United States Antorney

Federal Building & U.S. Courthouse ' . G e LT
Room 253 QDO&{\&.: '..J
222 W. 7th Ave, #9

Anchorage, AK 99513.7567

(807) 271-5071

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE DISTRICT OF ALASKA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA )

) No.
Plaintify, ;
v. )
)

: ) PLEA AGREEMENT
———DOYON BREI:NG;%JCT;—- } - —

)




st aren aoo;/o;g

B. The parties expresslyxgreeandacknowiedgethatthisAgrezm’uisemtedimomd
controlled by Fed. R. Crim P, II(.e)(I)(C) and 11(e)(2). The government and the Defendant
undersxandmdlgmethn: (a)iftthomaceeputhisPh;tAsreemm, tbeCoxmisboundbythe
tenmns of the Agreement, mdmegovummmdmewmdammboundbythemof&e
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beloggi . ..
resources belonging to or ippertaining to the Unitad States, in violaion of the Federal Water
Polluti

on Contral Act (Clean Water Acz), Title 33, United Statas Code, Sections |
o ons 319(:)(1)(A) &
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d)  The Defendant will provide the assignment schedules for DOYON
DRILLING empioyees dnd contractors, and grant liberal Iavetoitsemployecforany obligation
tompondmmyreqmtcappwforimmicwsbth enfomemagemmdgovem
counsel andmomrespondtomquus:tu appear or subpoens to &ppear at legal proceedings,
indudinggra.ndjurysusionsanduialx; '

e) TheDefendanzwiIIimposenolinﬁuoncomcabawmhw
enforcemen ageats and government counsel &8d Defendant's past ang present afficers and
employees, inciuding mﬁ:'ainjngﬁ'om instructing s officers and ezxpicyees that they must contact
3 company representative or counse! before communicsting with law enforesment personnel and
government counsel; however, I.?_OYON DRILLING may expect shat the United States will give
consideration to and will coordinate with DOYON DRILLING to the extent possible with respect
to work scheduluanddrimngnc:iviﬁa, sothatinvuﬁgzﬁvewm'kbythe United States will not
unduly interfere with the business of the company;

£ IbeDefeadmwiﬂimbmitsunplcyeamdoommthaixia
the policy of DOYON DRILLING to cooperate with regulatary authorities, and encourage its
past and present officers and empioyees to coopczxgﬁ:ﬂyandmnhﬁnggri_zg:hetlni;ed States

mddisdonaﬂinfomadoavd:hmpec:mmdrmﬁamdﬂnaafothmnhﬁngm
viohﬁonsoffede:lcdminalhws.indndingfederalmvbnmmﬂhwg

| 8  TheDefendant wil provide all relevant information including the
mmpletemﬂtsofaﬂimmdmdwwgnﬁmofmhmmdthemofﬂ
potential witnesses. Upon request in writing of the United States, the Defendant will provide 2
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order to ﬁxﬂycoopmeinaccordwiththisAgrmm. A.nypﬁvilegewaivumqumedwouw
not extend 10 opinions of counsel, mmmimpruﬁomofcounsdmdbgﬂadviceofcomsd The
Defendmmmmthnthcreisnoimemal oreaanalinvsdgaﬁverzpmofthgmbjeamm
in this Agreement Said information i3 contained in the witness Statements all of which shal be
provided as set forth in (h) below.

h) In the state of Alaska wimmmmaumgmaﬂyachanzed
between parties 1o [itigation. Accordingly, mﬁmheranee of its duuntocoepm consisteat .
with this Agreement, Defendant shal] provide to the Unned States witness statements (written
notes and interview memoranda) of ail interviews of its past or presext officers and employees, in
connection wnh the waste dxsposal practices and rig operations at Rig 15. Pomnns of the witness
statements which include counsel's menta] | impressions, opinions of counsel, ang legal advice of
counsel may be redacted. In addition, in the event the United States cails counsed for the
defendant to testify about witness statements obtained from Defendant's past or present officers or
employees, the Defendant shall permit such testimony to occur which orally provides the same
xnfonnauonuthnmthosewrmms(mmthemepuonoxmymﬂ impressions,
cpmions and legal advice of counsed). It iy further understood and agreedthat Defendant's

obligations in this plngraphmmb;eatomdhmadbythe Defendant's obiigations 10 preserve
confidences under all applicable joint defense agreements. Should Defendant determine that itis
obligated to withhold any such document orh:formﬁonmmtoajoimdénaaym
meDefendamM(a)idauifthﬁdngthenmuofmedmmunorMamﬁonkseeksm
withhold; and (b) provide ana:phmﬁoninwridngnmbowsaiddocxmoriﬁomﬁonis
coveredbythetermsofajointdcfmseagrmem.

- PLEXR AGREZNENT
Page 7 .
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1) The Defendant agrees to withdraw from aj] joint defense
lmmmwwormommudwedmdtﬁsagm Despite withdrawai
mmejMddmaymmmeDahdmwmwnﬁmtomwnﬁdmmaﬂ
applicable joint defense agreements unless al] relevant pu'riuwaivetheprivﬂegg The Defendant
grees 0ot 10 enter any joint defense agraements regndingthcaxbjeamidendﬁedinSecdon
MaﬁxthedzteofthiaPluAgreemm

B. In exchange for the Defendant's fuil and complete comptiance with the terms of this

Agreenm:hz%cvern;emagmtbuz

1. It will defer prosecution of one court of violating RCRA and one count of
violating CERCLA, as desc:-ibed_i?theDeferredewﬁcn Agresment. The government
nmum:ﬁmtomepmemﬁonofmmchrgawwemwmwmply
mmetumsmdwndiﬁomofthenefmedemﬁonAmmdthkAgrm

2. ItwinnotseekaddiﬁonﬂainﬁnﬂpmsecuﬁonintheDiadaofAlm
mmmunme.ummmwwmmm.wmw
aimhdﬁohﬁommmmnﬁoiaﬁom(l)rdm;mmdispoulm&ﬁgopm
2 Rig 15 from 1992 to 1995, or (2) based on any martersthet were the subjecs af the
WsmwmmmmmYONDmedemh
mvmunuqf:beﬁmeofthi;maw This Agreement does not fimit the
mmmsﬁghtommmyo&u:abwm&mofw&hkwmunfh
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charges and ouly binds the U.S. Anomey’s Office for the Diswict of Alaska' an the Department
of Justice Environmental Crimes Section, The Defendan has discassed with irs atomeys and
undmdsthancthingcontzinedinﬂﬁ:PluAgrmemismumtolimi:thexighuand
authory of the United States to take further civil or administraive acrion against the Defeadant
including but not limited to, any listing and debarment proceedings 1o restrict rights and
oppommkiuofthebefcndamtocomﬁthorreceiveusimnce,loansmdbeneﬁtx&um
United States government agencies.
M PENALTES
The maximum penaity for each of the counts in the Information is 2 fine af

X <

$200,000.00 or twice the gm:sg:}nor loss resuitng from the uniawfil conduct 13 U S.C.
Section 3571; from one to ﬁveyemprobation;mdupeda.llssessmmtof $125.00,13US.C.
Section 3013(a}(1XB). The Defendant coulda!sabereﬁuimdtnmkeﬁmr&imﬁonfmdmage
to any person or natural resources. _

V.  RECOMMENDATIONS AS TO SENTENCE

PutsunxtoFed.RCxim.P.ll(e)(l)lud(Z),th:puﬁeslgree!hathefdhwing
senteuceisappropﬁmandshouldbeixnposedinmisuse:

A DOYONDRELINGMptyl&eofSBNiHion. Oce milion of the fine will be
paidonorbeforethednethnthe&mimpcmm Two millicn of the $3 million fine
maybeoﬁsabyapndmmmmbyDOYONDMGﬁmlml, 1996 for the
development, implmuﬁoa,mdmmmuofacwpomemimmwmp&mm
for DOYON DRILLING and its employees, 13 discussed below. The excpenditures 1 be affyet
from the fine must be documented and approved by the U.S, Attorney's Office and Probation

PLZA AGREEMENT
Page 9
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Office within the period of probation. Any remainder of the fine smount noust be paid to the U.S.
Treasury prior to release from probation.

B. DOYON DRILLING shail Pay specia assessments of 51,875 (3125.00 for each
count) to the Victim's Assistance Fund, pursuant 1o Title 18, United States Code, Section
3013(2)(2)(B). |

" C. DOYON DRILLING shall be Placed on organizational probation for a period of fve
years.
¢ % D. In addition to the Court's standard conditions of probatica and in additicn to conditions
that may be set by the Probation Office, metmofpmbaﬁcnshznindudethefoﬂawingspeciﬁc
conditions: ' .

1. DOYON DRILLING shall commt 1o further violations of environmentai
laws, regulations or permits of the United States, including those for which primary eaforcement
has been delegated to 2 state.

2 Def&ndamDOYONDRH.LDXGagImmmbﬁshmdmainninm

bedﬂismfynﬁmdbytheoﬁmadmmotDOYONDm& As part of
subhshngmdmmmgmd‘m"wmphmmm DOYON DRILLING will do the
following: : |

a) appom iDOYON DRILLING employee as a responsible corporate
officer (RCO), who will have the requisite knowledge of DOYON DRILLING's campiiance

cbligations under this Agreemem mdmemthoﬁty:oinwnﬂm:beobﬁpﬁmmﬁxw

PLIA
Page 10
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impiemented, and who will be directly responsible for monitoring, maintaining, and enforcing the
provisions of the eavironmenra] compliance program  The U.S. Antiorney's Office and the Court
must approve the selection of the RCO. DOYON DRILLING will identify the RCO to the Court
at the time of sentencing:

b) establish, at a time prier to sentencing, a Compliance Committee
consisting of the RCO, the General Manager of DOYON DRILLING and the independent -
eavironmental consuitant hired to develop DOYON DR.!I.I.ING‘: compliance pmgra:n, as
descrived below or other suitable environmental consuitant approved by the U S. Attorney’s
Office and the Probation Offics. This Compliance Committee shai] report to the DOYON
Dm.mc board at each regularly scheduled board meeting;

c) retain, at.zdme prior ‘o semen&ng, the services of an independen
environmental consultant 1o be approved by the U.S. Attorney’s Office and Probation Office who
will develop the environmental compliance plan, including the requisite employee training
program. The consuitant shall have full access to all DOYON DRILLING facilities, including but
not limited to its drilling rigs and business offices, recards relating to DOYON DRILLING’s
compliance with environmenal laws, regulations and permits, and all present and past DOYON
DRILLING empioyees;

9 ideatify all waste streams from the DOYON DRILLING rigs;

€) develop writien work pracics sandards for DOYON DRILLING rgs
regarding bandling, storage, treatment, and proper disposal of all solid wastes and hazardous
substances;

PLIA
Page 13
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f)dwdopandimplemmaprognmtocompiywimmfedmlandm

program will inciude the development and maintenancs of fecord keeping regarding the
sccumulation, treatment storage, and proper disposal of all solig weste, a8 defined by RCRA.
The program must be approved by the U.S. Attorney's Office, Eavironmental Protection Agency
(EPA), and Probation Office prior to implementation. This program must be developed and fully
implemented within one year of sentencing;

) comagc: implementation of the compiiance program and training
following the government's review and approval The Defendant shall submit quarterly reports to
the Court, U.S. Antorney’s Office and Prabation Office, signed bytheRCO.dum‘hing:hemms
of the implementation of the enviroamental compiiance program and training. A statys
confermewiththeCounwiﬁbchddonmmﬂbadscammmcéagoneym&omdxedatethix
Ammmhmaiwm&equmﬂyumedbytheUﬂmdSmdebyme
Court, during the period of probation. The eavircamental compliance program will remain under
thampavidonoftheCounfm'mdunﬁonofthetumofpmbadonsubjeatopeﬁoﬁc
announced andummonncedimpeaionsbygovmem officials. Tais term shall not be
inmpraedhmywaywﬁnﬁtmyswmmw:ec«duoﬁummmmm
access or inspection rights.

h)mmmplommdwmrmplmmamm‘znymd
regulariypm_ematDOYONDRE.LlNG&dﬁﬁuontheNanhSlupeorminvalvedw&hwm

PLEA AGREENEXT
Page 12
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handling or disposal, anmuaily about the requirements of environmestal law, regulations and
pamiumdabomthenecasityofpmndmponﬁbﬂityincfom of environmental laws,
regulations and permits. This internal employes training will be in addition to any training
provided by DOYON DRILLING's clients: .

i) train all new DOYON DRILLING empioyess, md new contractor
employees that are normally and regularly preseat st DOYON DRILLING facilities on the North
Siope or have responsibility for waste handling or disposai, v:x:hm two inonths of hxnng about the
requirements of savironmental laws, regulations and permits and about the necessity of personal
responsibility in enforcement of environmental laws;

j) direct Supervisors to provide written certification amuaily to the RCO
that ail supervised employees have besn properly trained;

k) hire an independent eavironmental auditor approved by the U.S.

-Attorney's Office and the Probation Office to conduct annual audits of all DOYON DRILLING
ngsmopmonmdnmnewmphmmmaﬂmmmmhungﬂmmmdpm
adequacy of the compliance program, and adequacymdﬁ‘equmcyofmvimnmm'nﬁning,
The auditor will not be associated with the independent consuitant bired to deveiop the

s e et > et § e e + b

compliance and training programs. The auditor shail have fisll access to DOYON DRILLING's
drilling rigs, business offices, facilities, records relating to DOYON DRILLING's compliance with
environmental laws, regulations and permits aod DOYON DRILLING empioyees;

[} convey the independent auditor's annual reports to the EPA, the U.S.
Antorney’s Office, the Probaticn Office, and the Coun;

PLEA
Jage 13
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Sl

m) provide any rebuttal of, or explanations by DOYON DRILLING in
mponseto,themditor'sammdrepontotbeEA.tbeU.S. Attorney’s Office, the Probation
Office, and the Court;

n) umaaﬂmmoduedwimmeimplanmdon,mﬁmmm
memldeounreviewofthiscondiﬁcnot‘pmbaﬂon. All costs submitted a3 an offset to
theﬁnemustbedommmtedandappmvedbymct}.s. Attorney's Office and Probation Office
prior to the conclusion of probation.

3. mwmdmtmdmdsthiswtdosmtwn&rmyimmunityon
theDefeudunormyofiuoﬁcm,anployeaordirectorsformﬁngfalumcmmmozhs |
govanmenzorgivingumthﬁxltpsumonyundamouhamyjudidﬂpmaedhg nor does this
Ag-e:manprovideuseimnnnityordaivaﬁveuseimmmitytotheDcfmdmoranyofits
officers, employees or directors for any statements.

V. ELEMENTS
Thedmmofmeoﬁmdmhmehfmﬁmmwﬁ:hﬂnwwdmw
to plead guilty, are as follows: (1) that the Defendant acted aegiigen;iy: (2) that the Defendant
Mormmhﬁm&ammdﬁmawmc)u
medkchugewumoshueﬁnadjoiﬁngmoftheuﬁtedmwhamthnmy
have afected natural resources belonging to or apperaining to the Usited States. 33 U.S.C. §§
1319(c)(1X(A) & 1321(b)(3).
VL  FACTUAL BASIS
nexnduadmihdhdwmmawm{ormﬁoumwa&e
Information. The Defendant. acntporaﬁm.i:crimimﬂyliableforthemoﬁuanplcyees

FLEA AGREEMENT
age 14
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comprising the elements of the offenses charged. At all times described below, the employees
whose conduct is described were acting for the benefit of DOYON DRILLING and within the
scope of their employmeat.

The parties sﬁpulaethathefoﬂowing;mvids;facmalandlegzlb&:fotme
Defeadant’s conviction of the crimes charged in the Information.

A The Defendant |

Defendant DOYON DRILLING is an Alaskan corporation that provides drilling
services throughout the North Siope of the state ;f;.hs;a. DOYON DRILLING owns and
operates several drilling rigs on the North Slope, including Rig 15. Throughout the relevant
period, Rig 15 operated on Exdicort Island.

DOYON DRILLING has operated Rig 1§ on Endieott lsland (Eadicort) siace
approximately 1986. Endicon consists of two man-made islands located in the Beaufort Seq off
the North Slope of Alaska. The islands were constructed in the late 19805 1o facilitate oil
exploration and production.

Rig 15 bas several employee positions, including the toolpusher, who oversees the drilling
rig on behalf of DOYON DRILLING. The toolpusher s in charge of the rig and is the highest
ranking DOYON DRILLING employee regulariy onsize. The rockwasher warked in 8 separate
unit of Rig 15, used during the period relevant to this matter, called the rockwashing unit or
rockwasher. This rockwashing unit processed fluids that were used o lubricate the drill bit and
ift cuttings to the surface, sepmtingomsand,mwlmdrocks&umthcbhﬁam.uneddlﬂling
nmd.Ihevnnedﬁmngnmdumskmxudbyﬁmnkanhzhnoﬁu:mu:lmnﬁafWﬁk.

PLIA AGRIEDCZNT
Page 15
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When drilling a wel, Rig ISdriHuhoIetcacmaindepth.thenIowmastedpipeaﬂed
ummmmw:mmmmimpm The rig then drills 3 second,
smaller hole, within the surface casing. A second casing is then lowered and czmented into place.
F’mlly,mmmﬂuholeisdﬁﬂedﬁthintﬁssecondasingmdthemducﬁcnmbingis
lowered ioto the hole and cemented into place. The space inside the production tubing is where
the oil and gas are brought to the surface.

The space berween production tubing and the second casing is the inner amnulus. On most
Endicott wells, the inner annulus is closed to the ground formation. Fluids pumped down the
inner annulus remain in the inner ansuius until removed, The spacs berween the second casing
mdtheomer,nnﬁcecasingisc_aﬂedthemmmﬂua The surface casing extends to & depth of
betweea 2000 feet to 4500 feet. On most Endicott wells, fluids pumped down the cuter annuiig
ruchtthOOOto4500footdepth.thmﬂowimothegroundfcmﬁonmduetdmedinmthe
environment.

B. The Defendaor's Unlgwil Conduct

Omapedodofmaﬂymbeginningappmﬁmmyinlalmmdhsﬁngumﬂ
approximately September 1995, employees of DOYON DRILLING discharged waste oil and
hwdmmbmbyinjedngbm&sofmmnuiﬂsdmmewemﬁoioﬂ-
producing wells. The barrels contained a variety of wastes, including waste paint thinner, waste
pﬁnnvnaedLwnaegﬁcdumnunncummm;'ﬂwunssnnmﬁﬂsﬂu:dhnodu
mkwuhcunhmdhjwdmmeomemﬁh&dedoﬂmdmmbmu
thosetmmdeﬁnedinreguﬁﬁomoftheEPApronmlnmdmmhFeduﬂWuc
Pollution Control Act.

PLZA AGREENENT
Page 16
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Waste materials from throughout the faciiity on Endicotr were accurrulated in barrels.
Doyon Drilling empioyees did not atways segregate waste materials when placed in barrels,
resulting in the unlawful mixing of wastes. Full accumulation barrels were routinely taken to a
designated Sstorage area on the isiand.

Onamuaibanﬂsofmmww:hadacamhteduthemgemtheﬁz
toolpusher or roustabout pusher would direct that the barrels be taken to the rockwasher for
disposal. A forkiift operator would transport the barrels 1o the ‘ockwnhmg unit, where 2
rockwasher would inject the wa:e materials, enher by placing the wastes into a collsction tank
and then injecting the tank contents, or pumping the wastes direc:ly from the barrel.

DOYON DRILLING em?lcyees injected waste materiais 1s frequently as once every two
wesks. On occasion, as many as 25-30 barrels were m;ec:ed at one time. Approximately seven
rockwashers were directed to inject hazardous waste. Rockwashers complained about the
noxious fumes reieased during injection of the waste. Somse rockwashers wore respirators
provided by DOYON DRILLING to protect them from the fumes. DOYON DRILLING
conducted no eavironmental laboratory testing to determine the nature of the wastes and whether
m
m
mw
n
17

1

PLEA AGREBMENT
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the wastes were hazardous prior to workers' exposure and release of the waste materials imo the

environment.

Dated this ____ day of Aprii 1998.

FOR THE UNITED STATES: FOR DOYON DRILLING:
™Moo ‘éﬁz«f ‘ Q—N‘

ROBERT C. BUNDY MORRIS THCMPSON

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY PRESIDENT CF

DOYON DRILLING, INC. *

s

TIMOTHY M. BURGESS MICHAEL SPAAN
ASSISTANT U. 8. ATTORNEY BOGLE & GATES,P.LLC.

. COUNSEL FOR DOYON

DRILLING, INC.
Caaved V' %W

DEBOCRAH M. SMITH DAVID V. MARSHALL
DEPUTY CHIEF DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE LLP
ENVIRONMENTAL CRIMES SECTION COUNSEL FOR DOYON
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE DRILLING, INC.

Dfoc! Goan  yfnjag
07 G T%‘. Covauny
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1 I ?JSE;ERT C. BUNDY . ?(‘C {
TIMOTHY M. Bgﬁ&ss DN
DEBORAR M. Sh e erey CoPRY
Deputy Chief
_?_ggl‘r ELTRINGHAM

Department of Justice
é ol A United §
pecial Assistant United States Attorney
Federal Building & U.S. Courthouse
Room 253 .
222 W. T Avenus, 49 * <
Anchorage, Alaska 99513-7567 <
o " (507) 271-5071

: UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
12 DISTRICT OF ALASKA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff, No.

V.
17} DOYON DRILLING, INC,,
18 Defendant

INFORMATION

o [
[+ N V.

21 COUNTS 1-18
2 ﬁuUnitedSmaAnomeydmguthnnanmwauumﬂisnﬁmuﬂm -
23 1. DOYONDRILLING,INC.(DOYONDRILLD&G), was an Alusian corporation

26| Rig 15. RingmmdbyDOYONDRH.UNGonEndimlshnd.ann-mdeiﬂmdw
7 intheBeanfonSuoEtheNonthpeanluh '
P
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2 hhelS%.lmmhgﬁdﬁqknownulwwunddedtoRigls. Tae
function ofthmhswu!oproceumckanﬁngs andspemdzillingmudsusedinthedrimng
process. Someofthemckwningsmdspemdﬁmngmudswceinjectedmmemmﬁ,ordze

injection.

3 Begianing approximately in late 1992, and cominuing through September of 1995,
DCYON DRILLING employees working in the rockwasher on Rig 15 were instructed by their
supervisors to dump the contents of waste barreis into a tank in the rockwasher and then inject the
contents of the tank inta the outer annuli of oil-producing wells. Occasiczally, rockwashers pumped
thewastesdh'ecﬂyﬁ'omthebmdsdowntheouxeramuﬁofwdb. Thebmdseominedavaﬁaycf
wastes, ir.dudhgmepdmﬂmma.mwfnnmoﬂ,wmglycoL and waste solvents. These
materials included oil and hazardous substances a3 those terms are defined in the EPA regulations
promuigated pursuant to the Federal Water Pellution Contral Act.

4. meama-mmﬁo{dteoﬂ~prbducingunn:imowhi:hthe waste materials were
injected are not sealed. The waste materials were rejeased into the environment and oot redaimc:i'
On several occasions between 1992 and Seprember of 1995, annular injection materiais returned to
the ground surface near the wells into whichmematu'idshadbmpmdouﬂydixhrged. These
mmhghﬁdmwnﬁnmdmummﬁmmmeiniﬁnmofinjeetiontoother
mmaﬁmﬂ&aﬁmmmmimyasmmmmuwommmmﬁm
States.

5. The Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 US.C. § 1251 & 58q., 2iso known ag the
Clean Water Act, seeks to prevent, reduce and eliminate water pollution in the United States, and to
conwve:héwaasofthewadSmaforthepmmﬁmotﬁthdmaﬁcufe.widE&;
mcruﬁonﬂmmdthenndwcbwmforpubﬁcdﬁnkingm, agricuiture, and industriad
purposes. 33 U.S.C. § 1252(2). The Clean Water Act was amended in 1950 by the Oil Pollution
Control Act (OPA). The OPA amendments prohibit the discharge of ail or hazardous substances
upontheshordinaadjoirﬁngthawatmoﬂheuhed Smaandthnrmylﬂ’ec:mwbdonginz
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COUNT!
COU&T 2
COUNT 3
COUNT 4
COUNT s
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COUNT 9
COUNT 10
COUNT 11
COUNT 12
COUNT 13
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1] to or appernaining to the United States in quantities that may be harmﬁ;L 33USC.§ 1321(b)(3).

6. At Endicott Island within the District of Alaska, defendant DOYON DRILLING
H negligendy discharged 2 harmful quantity of il and hazardous substances upon the shorelines
adjoining waters of the United States and that may nﬁ'ec:mmn!mowce:bdongingtoor
appertaining to the United States on or about the following dxtes:

May 1, 1993 through June 30, 1993

July 1, 1993 through August 31, 1993
September 1, 1993 through Ociober 31, 1993
November 1, 1593 through December 31, 1953
January 1, 1994 through February 28, 1954
March 1, 1994 threugh April 30, 1994

May 1, 1994 through June 30, 1994

July 1, 1994 through Augusz 31, 1994
September 1, 1954 through October 31, 1994
November 1, 1994 through December 31, 1994
January 1, 1995 through February 28, 1995
March 1, 1995 through April 30, 1998

May 1, 1995 through June 30, 1595

July 1, 1995 through Auguse 31, 1995
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1 , COUNT 15 Scptember 1, 1998 through September 30, 1995
2 All in violation of Title 33, United States Code, Sections 13210X3) and 13 IS(EX1IXA) and
Title 18, United Stares Code, Section 2.

;’ DATED this __ day of Apri, 1998,

BUNDY
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13 } , : Deputy Chief
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Assistant United States Attorney
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23
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28
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ROBERT C. BUNDY ' é’&@//

United States

TIMOTHY M. BURGESS
Assistant U.S.

DEBORAH SMITH

Deputy Chief

Environmental Crimes Section
SCOTT ELTRINGHAM

Trial Attomney

Environmentai Crimes Section
JAMES OESTERLE

Special Assistant United States Attorney
Federai Building & U.S. Courthouse
Room 253

222 W. 7th Ave, #9

Anchorage, AK 99513-7567

(907) 271-5071

INTEE UNITED STATZS DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF ALASKA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
Plaintff,

V.

No.

— DOYONDRILLING;INC:
Defendant,

VVV\-J N’ st N N g Nyt? Nt

L INTRODUCTION
A. This document mmmmmwme&w
Agreement) between the United States of America and Defendant DOYON DRILLING, INC.

DRFERRED PROSECUTION AGREENENT
Page 1



- -l e Aveay T US ATINY ANC3 @oos/020

(DOYON DRILLING) with respect to charges under the Resource Copservation and Recovery
Act (RCRA), 42 U.5.C. Section 6928(d)(2)(A), and the Comprehensive Eavironmental Response,
Liability, and Cleanup Act (CERCLA), 42 U.S.C. Sections 9601 & 9603. Filed simuitanecusly
with this agreement is a Plea Agreement between the United States and Defendant DOYON
DRILLING, in which DOYON DRILLING sgresd to plead guity 12 15 charges of negligemly
discharging 2 harmful quantity of oil and hazardous substancas upon the shorelines adjoining
waters of the United States and in & manner that may have affeczed resources belonging to or
appertaining 1o the United States in violation of the Federal Wat;Ponion Controi Act (Clean
Water Act), Title 33, United States Code, Sections 13 19(c)(1)(A) and 1321(b)3). The deferral of
felony RCRA and CERCLA charges is contingeat upon DOYON DRILLING's compliance with
the terms ofbmtﬁsbémﬂwmmemuwwnm Other tha these two
agreements, no other agreement, understanding, promise or condition exists betwesn the partes.

- B. This Agreement is imited to the United States Attomney for the Diswict of Alaska
(U.S. Antorney’s Office) and the Exvironmental C:imes Section of the Department of Justice, 2nd
does not bind other sections or divisions of the Department of Justice or any other federal, state
or local prosecutive or regulatory authority. ’

é. nepwaapamwmhmypwﬁcmmmm&mmdwoﬁdm
setfonhinthi;DefmzlAgnm the Plea Agreement, and the Information. However, the
parties specifically reserve the right to make public statements or Slings that do not contradict the
facts set forth in the Deferral Agreement, Information and the Plea Agreement after the filing of

the Information.

DEFERRED PROSECUTION AGREEMENT
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I  IHEAGREEMENT
A. The Defendant agrees to:

1. Acknowledge responsibility for the acts and omissions constituting the crimes
alleged beiow:

2) From late 1992 through September 1995, in the masner and frequency
discussed below in Section IV, in the District of Alaska, Defendant DOYON DRILLING did
knovdngly dispose and cause to be disposed, hazardous wastes on E=dicort Island, by injecting
harardous wastes down the outer anm:liqof oil-producing wells, without a permit or interim status
authorization, in violation of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), 42 U.S.C.
Section 6528(d)X2X(A). .

b) Ooor aiaout Jamiary 17, 1995, a hazardous substance consisting of 23
barrels of ignitable waste solvents and waste il containing F-listed bazardous wastes as defined in
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, was released into the environment from Rig 15, by
injection into the ground through the outer annuli of an oil-producing well on Endicott Tsland: the
release was not federally permitted; the amount reieased was in excess of the reportable quantity
as defined by law, MDOYONDRMG&H&&MMW&.WPMW
of the United States as scon as DOYON DRILLING became aware of the release, ail in viclation
of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Cleanup, and Liability Act (CERCLA), 42
U.S.C. Sections 9601 and 9603.

2. Cancedeandadmitme&cmalmdlegﬂbaisfwm:hnguudmh

section I[V.

DEYERRED PROSECUTION AGREEXENT
Page 3
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3. Have its representative, duly authorized by the Defendant DOYON
DRHLNG:deofDirmmdwhhmmodtymspukfortbeDefmdm sign the Deferreg
Prosecution Agresment and appesr in court at the time it is filed.

4. Provide to the United States and the Court written evidenes, in the form of a
notarized resolution of its Board of Directors wi:h'both notary and corporate seals, certifying that
Defendant is quthorized to enter the Deferred Prosecution Agreement, toll the appiicable statutes
of limitations, and comply with all provisions of the Deferrai Agreement. The reschution shall
further canify that the President or Chief Execurive Officer or his or her designee are authorized
totakzthueac:ionsandthataﬂcoxpomeformﬁda,indudinghmmﬁnﬁtedtoapprovﬂ by
Defendant's directors, required for such authorizarion have been observed.

s. TheDefmdamundsmdsmdagmthnthcpmumﬁonoftheRmcom
and CERCLA count will be deferred for  period of five years. During this five year deferral
period, the Defendant agrees to the following conditions:

3. The Defendant shalt commit no further viclations of state or federal
aiminailawn,euvironmenulhm,reguhﬁmorpcnﬁuoftheUnimdSm inchuding those for
which primary enforcement has been delegated 1o 1 state.

b. In connection with the United States’ investigation of possible violations
of the RCRA, CERCLA, the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 300f et 32q., or any
mmmdmaimdﬁohﬁmn&dimukhd,uuh,mdhmym«m
pmceedingsuiﬁngomoﬂhisinvsﬁmmewendm“ﬂcoopmmnhﬁmymd
completely with the United States. The Defendart agrees that such cooperation shall inciude, but
not be limited to, the following upen request:

DEFERRED PROSECUTION AGREEMENT
?nge 4
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i) The Defendans will provide access o copies of eriginal
documents and records and providing mthenﬁaﬁonofwchdocxmmubndn&umcord;;

i) The Defendant will provide reasonsble access to DOYON
DRILLING rigs;

iii) nmrk&mWMwmpnwﬁeuzasmlhﬁmhm&eqqu
and consultants and copies of their records, reports, and docurmenzs, including but not limited to
Dames & Moors; . .

iv)  The Defeadant will provide the assignment schegules for
DOYON DRILLING ermployees and contractors, and granting lberal leave 1 its employees for
any obligation to respond to any request to appear for interviews by law enforcement agents and
government counse! and also to respond to any request to appwérmbpmmappearatlegzl
proceedings, inciuding grand jury sessions aad trials;

v)  The Defendamt will impose 50 limits on contacts between
law enforcement agents and government counse! and Defendant's past and present officers and
amﬂqwnakmhﬁngnﬁmhhgﬁnmﬁuuuakmhsoﬂkaxamiuqmwuntMnﬁuymmncmnuz
acompanymmumﬁveorm:dbeforecamnﬁca&ngﬁthhwenfmmomd and
government counsel; however, DOYON DRILLING may expect that the United States will give
:mmmhﬁﬁmnouﬂvﬂlumu&uuw&hDOYONDRnLD«Emﬂnenaupmnmhumhmqna
tnumwkuﬁnmmaanddﬁﬂhgunhhkasoduzhwuﬁgnhm\mnkbydmlkﬁ:dSnuswﬂlun
unduly interfere with the business of the compasy;

vi)  The Defeadant will inform its employees and contractors
dnzhis&wpo&qcfrﬁnﬂmﬂrﬂULLnﬂiuaampunswﬂhnqphnwyanhuhkaamd

DEFARRED PROSECUTION AGRIZMENT
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ammagehpmmdpmoﬁmmdmpieymmmomeﬁﬂymdmnhﬁ;nymm
UnhedStnamddisdouaﬂinfomadonwhhmpeamthdrwiviﬁumdthouofm
rdadngtoviohﬁomoffedeﬂainﬁmlhws,indudingfedetﬂmimwm

vi)  The Defeadant will provide all relevant informazion
inciuding the complete resuits of all wternal and external investigations of this marter and the
pames of all potential witnesses. Upon reques: ia writing of the United States, the Defendant will
provide a limited waiver of the attorney-client privilege and the work product doctrine, if
fiecessary, in order to ﬁ:ﬂymp«atci;mrd with this Agreement. Any privilege waiver
requested would not extend to opinions of counsel, mental impressions of counsel and legal
advice of counsel. TheDc&ndaq;wurmsthn;ﬁe:ei:nokﬁmdotMinvmigﬁverspon
of the subject matters in this Agresment. Said information is contained in the witness statements
anofwhichshlubepwvidedusafnnhin(h)bdow.

viii) hmgmeofuadn,wimmmmmgmuy
exchanged berween parties to litigation. Aeeo:ﬂingly,inﬁmhmnoﬁtsdmiutneoopum
mmzwimmwmmmawmumdswmm

(wﬁnmmtsmdimwewmomda)ofanimviemofhsp&ﬁo{g{e_umcﬁwsmd

mplmhm-cdmm&emﬁspowpucﬁmanddgopmﬁomam 15. Portians
dmemmmmmamd’swmmoﬁdmdm&m

‘legﬂadvieeofmsdmxybemdwwd. Intddiﬁon,intheevemmeUnitedStnaan:msd

for the defendant to testify abounrimnmobaimdfmmbdmduﬂmuprm
officers or employees, the Defendant shail pqmi:mchtsﬁmonytoowwﬁchonnypmvidu
meameinfomaﬁonuthninthouwimmmm(ﬁ:hﬁumofnym

'DETERRED PROSECUTION
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impressions, opinions and legal advice of counsel). It is further understood and agreeqd that
Defendant’s obligations in this paragraph are subject to and limited by the Defendant's obligations
to preserve confidences under all applicable joint defense agreements, Should Defendant
determinethnitisobligz:edtowithholdanymchdoammorinfcrmﬁnnpmwmajoim
defense agrement, the Defeadant shall (a) ideariy in writing the natare of the document o
informationitseekstowithhold;md(b)providcmexphnaﬁonhwdﬁngumhcwaid
document or information is covered by the terms of a joint defense agreement.

6. The Defendant agrees zoﬁ:hd:awﬁnma;join: dm‘meizh )
individuals of corporations, as of the date of this agreement. Despite withdrawal Som the joint
defense aMem the Defenda_mwill continue to preserve canfidences under all appiicable joint
defense agreements unless ail relevant parties waive the privilege.

7. TheDefendamagreestorﬁahindzcﬁxtureﬁ'ommuingimmhcsamzormy
newjointdefmseagrmzmssimﬂanomdinvohingzh:mpuﬁumdwbjec:mmas
those that may exist as of the date of the signing of this document. However, nothing herein shall
pmmDOYONDMG&mmhgimomyjoimdefuxwinthgﬁmu
deemed necessary in anticipation of litigation other than criminal enforcement by the United

States pursuant to the terms of this Deferr Agre=ment, provided any future joint defense
agreements donotcompromisetheDefendam‘; cbligations to fully cooperate with the United
States, as required by this Deferral Agreement.

8. TheDef:ndantmmthatithubemﬂﬂyadvisedoﬁtsmmqmd
Fonstitutional rights, that it has been informed of t:s possible charges and allegations sgainst it
and the possible penalties, and that it understands them. For each count of a RCRA or CERCLA

DEYERRED PROSECUTION AGREEZMENT
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conviction, the penaity is 3 maximum fine of $500,000 or twice the gross gain or loss resulting
from the unlawful conduct, 18 U.S.C. Secticn 3571; from one to Sve years organizational
probation; and 3 special assessment of $200.00, 18 U.S.C. Section 3013(aX1XB). The Defendant
could also be required to make full restitution for damage to any person or naturai resources,

S. The Defendant agrees to estabiish and maintain an effective environmental
compliance program enforcing all state and feden environmental laws, reguistions, and permits.
Defendant DOYON DRILLING agrees that the environmental cotpliance program will be
diligently enforced by the officers and managers of DOYON DRILLING. As part of establishing
and maintaining an effective compliance program, DOYON DRILLING will do the following:

2) appoim_x DOYON DRILLING employee as a responsible corporate
officer (RCO), who will have thereqms:te knowiedge of DOYON DRILLING's compliance
obligations under this Agreement and the authority to insure that the obligatioss are fully
implemented, and who will be directly responsible for monitoring, maintaining, and enforcing the
provisions of the environmental compliance program. The US Attorney’s Office and the Court
must approve the selection of the RCO. DOYON DRILLING will identifly the RCO to the Court
at the time of semencing;

b) establish, at a time pricr to sentencing, a Compliance Committee
consisting of the RCO, the General Manager of DOYON DRILLING and the independent )
envircomental consultant hired 1o deveiop DOYON DRILLING's complianee program, as
described below or other suitable environmental consuitant approved by the U.S. Atorney's
Office and the Probation Office. This Comphance Committee shall repart 10 the DOYON
DRILLING board at each regularly scheduled board meeting;

DEFERRED PROSECUTION AGREEMENT
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<) retain, at a time prior to sentencing, the services of an independent
<avironmental consultant to be approved by the U.S. Attorney's Office and Probation OfSce who
wﬂdwdopthmmmwmpﬁmamwdhgmmmmﬂmmning
program. The consultanr shall have full access to all DOYON DRILLING facilities, including but
not limited to its drilling rigs and busineas offices, records raiating 15 DOYON DRILLING's
compliance with environmental laws, regulations and permits, and ail presen: and past DOYON
DRILLING empioyees;

d) ideatify all waste mis-ommgnovarx;mmc rigs;

¢) develop written work practice standards for DOYON DRILLING rigs
regndinghmdﬁngmnggmmmdmpccﬁspoalcﬁﬂmﬁdmmdhmdm '

f) develop and implement 3 program to comply with all federal and state
environmental laws, regulations, and permits. The program will adopt and implement the
recommendaticns of the independent environmental consuitant and will incorporate and employ
the equipment and procedures necessary to prevent future noncompliance and viglations. The
program will include the development and maintenance of record keeping regarding the
accurmulation, trestment, mnggmdprcﬁ«disposdnfaﬂ‘soﬁdwmadeﬁnedbykm
The program must be approved by the U.S. Attomey's Office, Environmeatal Protection Agency
(EPA), snd Probation Office prior to implementarion. This program must be developed and fully
implemented within cne year of sentencing; |

g)mmeimplmmﬁonoﬁhnmpﬁmmmmdmining
following the governmenr's review und spproval. Ths Defendant shall subamic quarterly reparts 1o

DETERRED FROSECUTION AGREIMENT
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the Court, U.S. Attorney’s Office and Probation Office, signed by the RCO, describing the starus

of the implementation of the environmentai compliance program and training. A stangs

conference with the Court will be heid on an annual basis comeudngoneyearﬁ-omthgdagof
this Agreement is executed, or more frequently as requestad by the United States and approved by |
the Court, during the period of probation. The environmental compliance program will remain
uader the supervision of the Court for the duration of the term of probation subject to periodic
announced and unannounced inspections by government officials. This term shal not be
interpreted in any way to limit any governmental agency's exercise of its statutory or reguiatory
access or inspecdon rights.

h) trmdl employees, mdmmaremplayeathnmmmaﬂ;;md
regularly present at DOYON DRiI.LING facilities on the North Siope or are invoived with waste
bandling or disposal, anmually about the requirements of environmentai law, regulaticns and
permits and about the necessity of personal responsibility in enforcement of environmentaj laws,
regulations and permits. This internal employee training will be in addition to any training
provided by DOYON DRILLING's clients;

1) train all new DOYON DRILLING employess, and new contractor
mployeuthummmﬁyudmguhﬂypmemnDOYONDMG facilities on the North
Slope orhwempcmibiﬁtyformebmdlhgordisponl, mﬂuntwomnmhsofhmgaboutthc
requirements of eavironmental laws, mgshuommdpmts and about the necessity of personal
responsibility in enforcement of envircomental laws;

J) direct supervisars to provide written certification annually 1o the RCO
that all supervised employees have been properly trained;

DETERRED PROSECUTION AGCREINENT
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k) hire an independent environmestal suditor approved by the U.S.
Attorney's Office and the Probation Office to conduct annuai audits of all DOYON DRILLING
mmommmdmmmmmwmmmmm
Adequaqdmewmpﬁmpmmuddmuym&mqummm&
Thewdhmﬂmbemchwdvﬁ:h&eind:p&dmcamﬂumhkedtodwdnpthe
compliance and training programs. The suditor shal have fill accees to DOYON DRILLING's
drilling rigs, business ofSices, facilities, records relating to DOYON DRII..LING’s compliance with
environmental laws, regulations and permits and BOYON DRILLING employees:

) convey the independent auditor's annual reports to the EPA, the U.S. -
Attorney’s Office, the Probation Pﬁce, and the Court;

m) prcvid; any rebuttal of, or explanarions by DOYON DRILLING in
response to, the suditor's annual repert to the EPA, the U.S. Antomey's Office, the Probation
Office, and the Court;

n) assume all costs associated with the implementation, maintenance and
governmental and Court review of this condition of probation.

10. mndmdmudmm@mdoammnfauyhnmnitym
mndmdmwmdiuoﬁmmbyeumﬁmmfmmﬁng&lammm
govmauuzivhgmﬂuﬂxﬁﬂmﬁmonymdzanmhnmyjuﬁdﬂmcn&gn&doqu
agreement provide use immunrity or derivative uss immunity to the Defendant or any of its
officers, employees or directors for any statements.

11. Ifit is determined the Defendant violsted 1 condition of this Deferral
Agreement during the five year deferral, the United States’ obligations under this Deferral

DEFZRRED PROSBCUTION AGRIZMNENT
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Agreement are immaediately terminated and th United States can in its discretion, withdraw from
this Deferral Agreement. The United States may then prosecute the Defendant on charges it has
agreed to defer or forego. The Defeadant waives any statute of Emitation defense that could be
asserted to charges described in Section II(B)(1)&(2) should prosecution be reimstituted following
breach of this Deferral Agresment by the Defendant.

B. In exchange for the Defendant's fuil and complete compliance with the terms of this
Deferral Agreement throughout the five year deferral period and DOYON DRILLING's
agreement to plead guiity to 15 misdemeanor counts charging the negligent discharge of oil and
hazardous substances upon the shorelines adjoining the waters of the United States and in a
manner that may have afected resources belonging to or appertaining to the United States, in
violation of Title 33, United Sm;s Code, Sections 131§(c)(1)(A) and 1321(b)(3), the United
States agrees that:

1. It will not prosecute the Defendant for the RCRA and CERCLA violations
described in Section II(A)(2)(3) & (AX2)(b) above.

2 It will not seek additionai criminal prosecution in the District of Alaska
against DOYON DRILLING, or any oth:ra.ﬁﬁmd or related cnrporf_e_enﬁty, for mvironmmxl___

criminal violations and general criminal violations (1) relating to waste disposal and rig operations
at Rig 15 from 1992 to 1995, or (2) based o8 any matters that were the subject of the
. government's criminal investigation involving DOYON DRILLING and were known to the
government as of the time of this Deferral Agreement. This Deferral Agreement does not limit
m@msﬁgmmmmmn&mb:dm&md%kmwuoﬂh
date of this Deferral Agreement. The parties understand that this Deferral Agreement does not

DETEARED PROSECUTION AGREENENT
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apply to any individuals, inciuding but not limited to present and former employees, afficers,
agents and contractors. The parties further understand that this Defarral Agreement applies only
tofedmlcrinﬁndchnrgesmdonlybin&stheU.S.Anumcy’sOﬁcefortthistxiczofAh;h
and the Department of Justics Environmental Crimes Section. The Defendant has discussed with
its attorneys and understands that nothing contained in this Deferral Agreement is meant to limit
the rights and authority of the United States to take further civil or administrative action against
the Defendant inciuding but got limited to, any listing and debarment proceedings to restrict rights
and opportunities of the Defendant to cdntract with or receive assisance, loans and benefits from
Uuited States government agencies.
I ELDMENTS _

A, Resource Copservation and Recovery At

The elements of a RCRA treatment or disposal without 2 permit offense are 3s follows:
(1) the defendant is 2 person who; (2) knowingly; (3) treated, stared, or disposed of. (4) 2
" hazardous waste; (5) without a permit or interim status authority. 42 U.S.C. § 6928(3(2XA).

The elements of a CERCLA offense for faure to report 2 release are a8 follows: (1) a

hmrdommhzmqe;&)inm:mmequdmumzhn:hzm«nbhmmm
released into the environment; (4) from a facility or vessel; (5) the reiease was other than 2 .
federally permitted release; and (6) the defindazr, who was a persca in charge of the aciliy or
vessel; (7) failed to notify the appropriate agency of the United States immediately a3 soon as he
or she became aware of the reicase. 42 U.S.C. § 9603.

DEFERRED PROSECUTION AGREEMENT
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IV.  EACTUAL BASIS

The conduct described below constitutes 2 factual and Jegal basis for the RCRA and
CERCLA viclations described in Section I(A)X2)(3) & (A)(2)(b) above. The Defendant, a
corporation, is criminally liable for the acts of its employees comprising the elements of the
offenses charged. At ail times described below, the employees whose conduct is described were
acting for the benefit of DOYON DRILLING and within the scope of their empioyment.

A. The Defendanmt

Defendant DOYON DRILLING is an Alasian corporation that provides oil-ﬁal;
drilling services throughout the North Slope of the state of Alaska DOYON DRILLING owns
and operates several drilling rigs_on the North Slope, including Rig 15.

DOYON DRILLING hu.opemed Rig 15 on Endicont Isiand (Eadicott) since
approximately 1986. Endicor consi#s of two man-made islands Iocated in the Beaufort Sea off
the North Slope of Alaska. The islands were constructed in the late 1980's to facilitate oil
production. |

Rig 15 has several empioyee positions, including the toolpusher, who oversees the drilling
rig on behalf of DOYON DRILLING. The toolpusher is in charge of the rig and is the highest
ranking DOYON DRILLING employee regularty ousite. The rockwasher worked in a separate
unit of Rig ZS,usdmﬁngthep«iodrﬁmwthism.dhdthemkwuhbgmor.
rockwasher. This rockwashing unit processed fluids that were used 10 lubricate the drill bit and
lift curtings to the surface separating out sand, gravel and rocks from the lubricant, called drilling
mud. The waste drilling mud was injected from tanks in the rockwasher into the cuter anmuii of
wells. ,

DEYERRED PROSECUTION AGREEMENT
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When drilling a well, Rig 15 drills a hole 10 2 certain depth, then lowers a steel pipe called
the surface casing into the hole and cements that casing into place. The rig then drills a second,
smaller hole, within the surface casing. Asacnndmingistheniowmdmdm:edimdphu.
Finally, an even smaller hoie is drilled within this second casing and the production tubing is
lowered into the hole and cemented into place. The space inside the production wbing is where
the oil and gas are brought to the surface.

The space between production tubing and the second casing is the inner anrulus. On most
Endicott wells, the infer annuiis is closed to the ground formation. Fluids pummped down the
inner annulus remain in the inner annuius until removed. The space between the second casing
and the outer, surfiace casing is called the outer anmulus. The surface casing extends 10 8 depth of
berween 2000 feet to 4500 feet. On most Endicort wells, fluids pumped down the outer anmuius
reachtheZOOOwﬁOOfootd#th,thenﬂowimothzgnundformﬁonandarerduwdimothe
environment. |

At the completion of driling, the top 2000 feet of both the inner and outer annuli of a well
require "freeze protection.” Since Endicort is located in the permafrost zone, the top 2000 feet of
the earth are permafrost. If'a well is not freeze protected, the contents could freezs, potentially
damaging the casing. To prevent this, an anti-freszing type substance is pumped into the anmuli
Several different substances can be used to protect 2 weil from freezing. The freeze protection
fluids used by Rig 15 were new diesel and dead cude.

B.  IheDefendants Unlawfil Conduc

Beginning approximately in lats 1992 and lasting until approximately September 1995, in
the manner and frequency discussed below, empicyees of DOYON DRILLING discharged waste

DEFERRED PROSECUTION AGREINENT
Page 15



- - i 020

oilandhawdcussubmcabyinjeaingbmdsofmaewmmmddsdmmemmzﬁof
oil-producing wells. The barrels contained a varisty of wastes, including waste paint thinner,
waste paint, waste oil, waste glycol, and waste sciverts. Many of the waste materials placed into
the rockwasher tanks and injected into the outer annuli were hazardous waste under the Rescurce
Conservation and Recovery Act, including ignitatle wastes, and lead-contaminated il and
solvents. Some of these wastes were F-listed hazardous wastes under RCRA. F-listed hazardous
wastes are certain spent halogenared and non-haiogenated solvents which contain a certain level
of chemicals, such as methylene chloride, toluene, xylene, benzene and ethyi bena;z. )
Wastematedm from throughout the rig ind Endicott production facifity were
accumulated in barrels, DOYON DRILLING empioyees did not segregate waste materials when
pucedintheumuhﬁonbmd;onkigls,rauitingintheunhwﬂzlmi:dngofwme:. Once
ﬁzﬂ,theaccmhﬁonbmelswemutindytakmmaduignatedmagem
Onusw«ﬂbmhofwmemnuiﬂshadmﬂnednmnongemmeﬁg
toolpusher and roustabout pushers would direct that the barrels be taken to the rockwasher for
disposal. Aforkﬁﬁopmtcrwouldumpomhzbmlstomemckmaﬁnguﬁgwhcea
mvoﬁnmewwmummmwmgwm
imo'awﬂecdmmkmdthuinjwdngthemkwmmwpumphgmdhjmﬁ:gthem
directly from the barrel.
DOYONDRE.LINGemponminjwedmmgaiaka&equewyaommm
- weeks. On occasion, as many as 25-30 barrels wece injected at oze time. Approximately seven
rockwashers were directed to injest bazardous waste at various times. The rockwashers were
inmaedmfalsdyrqcnthnmmnuiﬂ;thnmmmﬂaﬁyinjec:am
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Rockwashers complamed about the severty of the fumes released during injection of the
waste. Some rockwashers wore respirators provided by DOYON DRILLING to protect them
from the fumes. No environmental laboratory tesing was done by DOYON DRILLING to
determine the nature of the wastes and whether the wastes were hazardous prior to workers'
mmmmauofmmeﬁnmmmmm |

The injection of ignitable used soivents ard listed hazardous wastes constituted disposal in
violation of RCRA, although the practice was cailed "freeze proteczion.” According 1o DOYON
DRILLING toolp.:lshsrx. used solverts and other waste products were not used to freeze protect
Endicort weils that had just been drilled. Instead, new diesel and dead crude oil were used. The
pracdce of illegal disposal, falseij-r disguised as legitimate freeze protection, was stopped when s
whistleblower disclosed the pncéce to the Operator of Endicott in September 1995, as described
below.

On approximately January 16, 1995, 23 burels of waste oil and wasts soivent were
delivered to the rockwasher on Rig 15 for injection. The rockwasher decided aot to pump the
chemicals into the rockwasher tank and inject them into the well. He told the forkiift driver and
tooipusher that he refused. After consuiting with representatives of the Operatar of the Endicont
facility, the toolpusher on duty instructed the rockwasher to inject the 23 barreis. Rockwashers
say that the toolpusher instructed the rockwashers to falsely report it on the injection log as
|mn |

On approximately January 17, a sample was taken of the 23 barrels prior to injection and
later tested by the EPA. According 10 the lab ansiysis, the sample was ignitable and contained
chemical constituents found in specific listed halogensted and non-kalogenated solveats identified
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by EPA as hazardous. Some of the particular constituents included: methyiene chioride,
naphthalene, toluene, benzene, xylene, ethyl beazene, 1,2,4-trimethylbenzene and 1,3,5-
trimethylbeazene.

The invoices and purchase orders of DOYON DRILLING reveaied the following products
in use at Rig 15 during the relevant period that contain some of the hazardous constituents found
in the sample: lacquer thinner (toluene) and paint thinner (xylene and toluens).

In late February 1995, a rockwasher went to the DOYON DRILLING office in
Ancharage to report the disposal practices cn Rig 15. He spoks with Benjamin Sln?sky,
DOYON DRILLING's Assistant Operations Manager, and Michael Krupa, DOYON
DRILLING's Health, Safety and Eavironmeatal (HSE) Coordinator, whom Shafsky supervised.
The empioyes recorded the conv;raﬁon without Shafsky's or Krupa's kinowiedge. During the
meeting, the rockwasher informed Shafsky and Krupa sbout the injections. He reparted the types
of substances being injected, the volume and frequency of the injections, the toclpusher who
directed the disposal, and the rockwasher's failed antempts to stop the practices. Both Krupa and
Shafsky acknowledged that the state of Alaska's genenl wastewater disposal permit for annular
disposal of drilling fluids did not ailow the injection of used soiveats, paints, and paint thinners

and that it was ilegal. Kmmsﬁdmamemcﬁuhldbmdomfmymmdm;thepmdum
being injected were supposed to be shipped off the North Slope. Krupa further acknowledged

) mmmmmmmmnmwmmmm&oﬂ
exploration and production exemption, noting that because the matsrials had not been
"downhoie," they couid not be disposed of by snnmular injection.
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Despite recaiving this report of llegal injection, 0o report was made regarding the
January 17 release or the continued illegal injection practices until October 12, 1995, when
DOYON DRILLING notified the National Response Center and EPA.  This notification occurred
after DOYON DRILLING learned that EPA had been informed of the whistleblower's allegations.

The Defeadant agrees that these facts provide a sufficient facual and legal basis to
establish the violations of RCRA and CERCLA described in Section II(A)(2)(a) & (A)(2)(b)
above. Defeadant firther agrees that the waste materials, inchyding waste soivents, waste oils,
waste paint, and waste paint thinners, disposed of through the rockwasher down the outer annuli
of oil wells, were not used for freeze protection and, further, were not exempt ffom RCRA
mumuunu:meeqmnaﬁanmm!gndnﬁcneunmﬁmm

The parties agree that this Deferral Agreement is not 2 judgement involving DOYON
DRILLING.
Dated this ___day of April, 1998.

“FOR THE UNTTED STATIES: FOR DOYON DRILLING:

ROBERT C. BUNDY MORRIS THOMPSON 'i

UNTTED STATES ATTORNEY PRESIDENT FOR DOYON DRILLING
TIMOTHY M. BURGESS MICHAEL SPAAN

ASSISTANT U. 5. ATTORNEY . ATTORNEY FOR DOYSN DRILLING
DEBORAH M. SMITH DAVID MARSEALL

DEPUTY CHIEF . ATTORNEY FOR DOYON DRILLING
ENVIRONMENTAL CRIMES SECTION - -
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 6‘ %
DEYERRED PROSECUTION AGRERNENT (}‘k *ih1n'hl‘
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